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Plaintiff MICHAEL DA VIS SAPIR, an individual, complains of Defendants, and alleges as
foliows:

PARTIES

1, Flaintiff MICHAEL DAVIS SAPIR (aka Michasl Davis) (“Davis” or “Plaintiff™) is an
Individual who, at &)l relevant imes, has regided in the State of California, County of Los Angeles,

a, Plaintiff 15 informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant TOM
CRUISE (*Cruise”) is an individual who, at all relevant times, has resided in the State of California,
County of Log Anpeles,

3 Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that bogis alleges, Defendant BERTRAM
FIELDS (“Fields™} is an individual who, at all relevant times, has resided in the State of Celiforpia,
County of Los Angeles.

4. Plaintiff is informed and belisves, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
GREENBERG GLUSKER CLAMAN FIELDS & MACHTINGER, LLP (“Cireenberg™) is a
California limited itatrility parmership with 1ts principal place of business in the County of Los
Angeles,

3. Plaintiff iz informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
ANTHONY PELLICANO (“Pallicanc’) i3 an individoa) whe, st 21l relovaut times, ragided in the
Btate of California, County of Loa Anpeles, and ie a currently a resident of a federal correctional
institudon in Arizona.

&, Plaintiff iz ignorant of the true names end capacitics of defendants sned hereln as Does
1 to 50, inclusive, and therafore sues these defendamnts under these fictitious names. Plaintiff will
seek leaye 10 amend il Complaint whcn, it learny the ey aod capacitics of theso deféndants.

7. Flaintiff ig informed and believes and thereon alleges that at all times mentioned
herein, the defendants, end each of thetn, were authorized and empowered by the other defendents,
and each af themn, to act, and they did so aet, 22 the agent, pringipal, partner, joint venturar, employee,
co-conspirator and/or aider and abettet of the other defendants, and each of them, and all of the things
alleged 7o have been done by them, and sach of them, were done in the capacity of and as agents,

prinzipals, partnters, joint venturers, employees, co-conspirators and/or aiders and abetters of such
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1| other defendants,
2 GENERAL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
3 8. This case arises from the surreptitious and illegal wiretapping of Plaintifs telephone
4 || calls by the notorious private investigator, Anthony Pellicana (“Fellicano™ for the benefit of
§| Defendants Cruise and Ficlds. Plaintif’s claima against Defendants arige from Defendants’
6 || imentional and malicious scheme and course of conduct of intimidation, harassment, and invasion of
7| privacy, andfor their conspiracy to commit, or aiding and abetting, such illegal activities,
8 9 Plaintiff was the founder, owner and publisher of Bold Magazine; 4 Beverly Hills,
9] California advestising-based publication which was citmilar to Léy Woehly.
10 10, Pellicano was a private investigator whe was found guilty on May 15, 2008 by a
11} federal jury of 76 of 77 counts, including racketeering, wiretapping (9 counts), conspiracy to wiretap,
12| manufacture and possession of & wiretapping device, wite fraud (19 counts), unauthorized access of
13 || national Jaw enforcement database (18 coums), identiry theft (13 counts), and compuner fraud (13
14 i cmumts), Om December 15, 200%, Pellicano was scotenced 10 15 years in prison and ordered, along
16 || with his codefendants, to/pay fines totaling $2,000,000. |
16 11, Fields is & prominent entertainment lawysr with the Greenberg firm, Plaintiff is
17 || informed and believes, and on that basie alleges, that Fields has been Cruise’s lawyet since at least
1o | the latc 1990%, Pellicanc regularly worked on matters for the clients of Fields and Greenberg and
18 || was paid substantial sums of money in connectivn therewith, Plaintiff is informed and believes, and
20 || on that basis alleges, that Fields and Greenberg were fully aware at all relevant times that Pellicano
21l provided wire-tapping services to obtain information from their adversaries and litipation opponents,
Z2 || and hi.:#d T fior that sxprzss purpess with full knuwlcdge ol Pellicang's illcgal metheds, Indeed,
23 || < Fields was quoted as saying that Pellicans used “unorthodox methods.”
24 12, Cruise is a movie star with a long-sianding business relationship with Fields,
2541 Oreenberg and Pellicanc, Plaintiff is informed and helieves, and on that basis allages, that Cruise has
zﬁj; & pattern and pragtics of hiring Pellicano, either directly or indirectly, for the express purpose of
275:; conducting wiretaps, Flaintiff i1 informed and belisves, and on that basis elleges. that in or about the
28] mid 1990°s, Cruise visited Pellicano's office for the putpose of listening to wiretaps. Plaintiff is
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informed and belicves, and on that boais alleges, that in or about 2001, durlng the time Cruise was
about to divorce Nicole Kidman, Pellicans recorded conversations of Kidman and Cruise, Pellicano
discussed with at least one of his employees the substance of those recorded conversetions.

13.  Inor about early 2001, Bold Magazine published & $500,000 reward offer for
videotape evidence that Cruise was gay, Shottly after the puhlication of the reward offer, Bold
Magazine reeeived an email with a video attachment in response to its reward offer. In or about
March 2001, upon receipt of the email response, Plaintiff isgucd a press release indicating that Bold
Magazine had received a response to its reward offer,

14, Somctime privr to Jusws 4, 2001, Cruise molained Fields and Greenberg to prepare a
defamation lawsuit against Plaintiff.

15.  OnJune 4, 2001, Cruise filed a lawsuit against Plaintiff for defamation, captioned Tom
Cridze v Michaal Daviz, and bearing Caze No_. BC 251644 (the “Lawsuit™). The Lawsuti sought
$100,000¢,000 in demages from Plaintiff.

16.  ‘the Lawsuit settled in sarly Novermber 2001, Pursuant fo the settlement, Plaintiff was
required to enter into e Stipulated Judgment wherein he stipulated at Paragraph 1. b. that “Plaintiff,
Tom Cruise, does not appear on the videatape to which said defendant referred to in his statements
alleged in the Complaint. Plainiiff is not, and has never been, homgsexual and has pever had a
homaserual affaic.” A trac and correst copy of the Stipulated Judgment is attached hereto as Exbibit
wp »

17.  Plaintiff jz infortmed and helizves, and o that hasis alleges, that Pellicano wiretapped
Plaintiff in connection with, and during the course of, the Lawsuil, as evidenced by, among other
things:

(13  Pellicano's standard business practice was to wiretap the tarpet of an
investigation. Plaintiff was the target of a Pellicano investigation. The FBI found a file entitled
“Michael Duvis Mattey™ in Pellicaino”s office.

(2)  Pellicano’s standard business practice was 10 a3tigh a pasyword ending with
the word “omerta” to nocess {llegally recorded conversations that had been encryptad snd stored on
iMae compaters in his office, The FBI found a computer fle entitted "Bold™ with o password ‘Dold
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cacksucker omerta” in Pellicana’s office, That file was o reference to Plaintiff s publication Bold,
(3)  Pellicano stated to 2 witness, in furtherance of the conspiracy, words to the
effect that “If you had 10 listen to him [Plaintiff] as much as [ have vou'll realiza he’s a1 asshole.”

18.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that L{OES 1 through 10,
wers law enforcement emplayees who conspired with or aided and abefted Peilicano in procuring
information on Plaintiff. |

19, Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that DOES 11 through 20,
were telephonc company employees who conspired with or aided and abetted Pellicano in instalting
the wiretaps targeting Flaingfy,

20.  Plaintiff is informed and belicves, and on that basis alleges, that Pellicano wirsiapped
conversations between Plaintiff and the lawyer representing Plainiiff in the Lawsuit, and thereby
obtained Plaintiff's confidential strategy and coneerns in connection with the Lawsuit, including his
fear that Cruise had vastly greatcr resouress with wiich to pursue the matter, and that despite the
strength of Faintiff’s casc, the risk of financial roinstion was too great, Defendants thus illegally
conspired to obtain this ¢onfidential information illegally in order to extort terms of settlement
amounting to caphinlation by Plaintiff.

21, Plaintiff firat suspocted that he was & wiretapping victing within the last yoar when an
FBI agent advised by to hire a lawyer.

FIRET CAUSE OK ACTION
(For Imvasion of Privacy (Intrusion) (Cal. Const, Art. 1§ 1)
Agalust nil Defeadants)

ZZ. Elaintiﬁ realleges end wicorparates each and ¢very allegation of paragraphs 1-21
above ag though fully sot forth herein,

23.  As aresuit of the conduct of Defendants, Plaintiff's privacy rights guaranteed by
cornman law and the California constitution ware intruded upon and vielated when Defendaats

intentionally direcied the illegal and unauthorized wiretapping of Flaintiff's telephone lines.
24.  Aliematively, Defendants’ condoet aided and abetted Pallicano’ s inmusion of

plaintiff’s constitutional right to privacy. Plainiff is informed and believes, and on that basis
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alleges, that Defendants knew of Pellicanio’s wiretapoing, gave substantial assistance or
encouragement to Pellicano, and their conduct was a substantial fact0r in cavsing harm 1o Plaintiff.

45.  Altematively, Defendants are responsible for the aetz|of Pellicano under the docttine
of Respondeat Superior.

26.  The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wiretap Plaintiff with knawledge that their
vonducl was ilJegal and violated Plaintiffs rights,

27.  Plaintifl did not consent 10 such wiretapping or the invasion of his privacy,

23.  Agadirect and proximate result of Defendants® acts alleged abowve, Plainti{f suffered
damages, incluting smootlossd distress darmages, in an/Amonnt to be broved at trial, ut in oxcess of
Five Million Dollags,

29.  Defendants® infrusion was highly offensive 1o a reasonable person because, among
other things, the intrusion resulted in the revelation of confidendal and private communications,
including without limitation, attomey-client communications and other private conversations.

30,  1n addition, Defendanty’ confdnet ag deseribad herein (was done with & conscious
disregard of Plaintiff's rights, and was done with the intent to vex, ahnoy, and harass him.
Defendants’ actions in consecious disregard for Plaintiffs wﬂl being constdtute malice, oppression,
and/or fraud, pursuant to California Civil Code Section 3294, Plalntiff iz therefore entitlad to
punitive damages in an ameourt sufficicnt to punish or set an example of Defendants,

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Interceptien, Disclosure and/or Use of Communications
in Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2511 Apainst All Defendants)

31, Flaindif realleges and Incorporates each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21 wd
2330 ahove as themgh fully set forth herein,

32, By the acts alleged hersin, Defendants intentionally caused 1o be intercepied,
efideavored to cause to be intercepted, or proeured angther person td intereept or endeaver to

intercept Plaintifl"s wire or electyonic communications in viglation l-f 18 U.8.C. § 2511(]1 Xa); and/or
33, Defendants intentionally veed, endeavared 1o uze, orlpeocurad another pearsom, to use ar

cndeavor to use an elsctronic, mechanical, or other device to intercept an oral communication when
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(1) such device was affixed to, or otherwise transmitted a ignal through, a wire, cable, or other like
vonnection used in wire communications; or (2) such use or endeavor to uss (2) took place on the
premises ol 2 business or comimercial establishment the operations of which affect interstate or
foreign commerce; or (b) obtained or was for the purpose of obtaining information relating 1o the
operations of a business or other commercial establishment the aperations of which affect interstate
ot forcipn commerce in violatiun of 15 LLE.C. § 2511(1XH), 2311 (VXD and 251 11 (b)), and/or

34.  Plaintiff is informed and belicves, and on that basis alleges, that Defendamts
intentionally disclosed, or endeavored to disclose, 1o anothiér person the contents of Plaintiffs wire or
elevironic wnununications, kinowing or having reason to know that the information woz obtained
through the interception of wire or elecironic commmnnications in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 2511(1)(c);
and/or

35.  Plaintiffis informed and belicves, and on that basis alleges, that Defendamts
intentionally used, or endeavored to use, the contents of Plaintiffs wire or elecironic
cormmunicatlons, while knowing or having reason ta know that the information was obtained through
the interception of wire o electronic comraunications in violation of 18 1.8.C, § 2511(1)(d); and/or

36.  Defendants did not notify Plaintiff of the above-described imentional pursuit,
interception, divulgence and/er use of his wire or electronic communieations, nor did Plaintiff
conscnt to such.

37,  Ahematively, Defendams’ conduct aided and abetted Pellicano’s violation of 18
U.B.C. §2511. Defendants knew of Pellicano’s wirstapping, gave substantial assistance or
encouragement to Pellicano, and was a substantial factor in causing harm to Plaintiff,

38.  Alwernadvely, Defendants are responsible for the acis of Pellicano uoder the dostrine
of Reapondeat Superior.

39.  The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wiretap PlaintifF with knowledge that their
condoct was Hlegel and vinlated Pleintiffe vights.

40.  Plaintiff has boen and is aggrieved by the atoresaid pursuit, interception, divalgence
and/or use of his wire or ¢lactronic communicatings.

41.  Pursuantto 18 U,8.C. § 2520, which provides a civil action for any person whose wire

7
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or electronic commimications have been intentionally pursued, intercepied, divulged and/or used in
viclation of 18 U.8,C. § 2511, Plaintiff secks equitable and declaratory relief; stamtory damages of
whichever is the greater of $100 per day for each day of violation or $10,000; and rezsonable
attorncys’ fees and other litigation costs reasonably incutred.

42, Defendants acted wantonly, recklessly and/or maliciongly. Pursuantto 18 17.8.C. §
2520, Plaintif is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish or set an
example of the Defendants,

TRIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Violationa of California I"onal Code Sections 632 & 637.2
(Eavesdropping) Against all Defendants)

43, Plaintiff realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 23-
30, and 32-42 above as though fully set forth herein,

44, Plaintift is informed and belisvés, and on thas basts allegas, thar Defendatts
intentionally wiretrpped or caused 16 have wiretapped and made or caused to have made ag
unauthatized and connection with Plaintiff’s telephone lines, wire, cable and thereby histened,
recorded, eavesdropped and intruded withiout ponsent on Plaintiffs ptivate internal telephone
convergatiems, including without imitation, attorney-clicot commuuications and other private
conversations, in viclation of Celifornia Penn] Code Seotions 632 and 637.7.

43.  Alternatively, Defendants’ conduct alded and abetted Pellicano’s violations of Penel
Code §632 and 637.2. Defendants knew of Pellicanc’s Megal wiretapping, gave substantial
assistance of encouragement to Pellicano, and was & substantial factor in causing harm to Plaintiff.

46, Alternatively, Delondants are responsible for the sl ol Pellicans under the dectrine
of Respondaat Siparior,

47, The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wirctap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illcgal and vielated Plaintiffs rights.

48, Asadirect result of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintitt has sustained and will continue to
Fustaly general and specinl damages in an amount to be proved at trial, but not less than Five Million

Diollarg,
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49.  Pursuant to California Penal Code Section 637.2, Plaintiff is entifled to dsmages in the
amount of $5,000 or three titnes the amount of actoal damages to be proved at tial, whichever is
greater, [ur cach instance when his conversationg wete eavesdropped vpon, retcordad, or published.
Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that the Defendants intercepted and
illegally wirstapped at least 1,000 conversations,

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Disclosure of Confidential Information (Cal. Civ. Code § 1798.53)
Apains¢ all Defendants)

S0 Plainlill realleges and incorporates cach and avery dllepation of paragrapha 1-21, 23
30, 32-42, and 44-49 above as though fally set forth hersin,

51 lointentionally causing the disclosure of Plaintiff's confidential information,
Defendants caused disclosure of informstion that was not otherwise public. In intentionsly receivigg
Plaintiff"s confidential information, Defendants receivad information that was pot otherwise public.

52, Defendants kugw ot should have raasonably knpwn that Plamtifts confidential
information, including LAPD computer database and files, was personal Information majntained by a
state agency ot ftom “records” within a “system of records” (as thess terms are defined in the Federa)
Privacy Act of 1974 (P,L. 93-579; 5 U.5.C. § 552a)) rnintained by a federal government REENCY,

53 Alteinatively, Defendants’ ¢onduet nided and abstted Pellicano’s violation of
California Civil Code §1798.53. Defendants knew of Pellicane’s wrongful conduct, gave substmtial
assistance of encouragement to Pellicano, and was  substantial factor in eausing harm to Plaintiff,

54, Altematively, Defendants are responsible for the acts of Pellicano under the doctrine
of Respondeat Superior.

543. The Defendants engager in a conspiraey to wiretap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and violated Plaintiff's rights.

56.  Ag aresult of the dizclasure and receipt of confidential inforrmation, Plaintiff waas

damaged in amoumt 1o be proven at trial, bat not Iess than Five Million Dollats.
7. Drelendants acted In conselous disregard of the rights of Plaintiff, Defandants were

aware of the probable dangerous conscquences of his conduct toward Plaintiff and willfully and

9
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deliberately failed to avoid those consequences. Defendants’ conduct toward Plaintiff was intended
to cause injury to Plaintiff and subjected Plaintiff to umjust hardehip, Defendants’ conduct was
carried out with & willful and conscious disregard of the rights of others. As a result, punitive
damages should be asseased against Defendants,

S8, Pureuant to Califortas Civil Code Section 1798.53, in addition to special and general
damages, Plaintiff shall be awarded a minitnum of $2,500 in exemplary (punitive) damages as well as
artorneys’ fees and other litigation costs reagonably incurred in this suit,

AV O
(For Intcodenal Infliction of Emotonal Distress Azpinst all Defendants)

»%.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 23-
30, 32-42, 44-49, and 51-5% ahove as though fully set forth hercin.

60.  The course of conduet engaged in by Dafendsints, including the direct intimidation and
harassment and purposetul invasion of privacy and iegal wiretapping, constitutes exireme and
outrageous conduct and is nnacceptable in 2 decent and law-abiding soclety.

61.  The conduct of Defendants was intentionally desizgned to cause inmediate harm and
injury to Plaintiff and instil] fear and apprehension in Flaintff.

62.  Defendants knew or should have know that the condut alleged hersin would rosult
in Plaintiff’s severc ecmational digtreas, and soid conduet was perpetrated by Defendants with the
Intent to inflict, or with the teckless disregard for the probability of inflicting memal angnish and
severe emotional distress on Plaintiff.

63,  Altematively, Defendants’ conduct aided and abetted Pellicance’s intentional infliction
of emononal distress, Defendants knew of Pallicano’s wronglul conduct, gave substantin] assistance
oF sncouragemeant tn Pellicano, and was a substantial factor in causing ham to Plainr.iﬁ‘.

6d.  Alternatively, Defendants are responsible for the acts of Pellicano ynder the doctrine

of Respondeat Buperior,

65.  The Dofendants engagedina congpiracy 1o wirctap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and vialated Plaintiff s rights,

66.  As adirect result of Deferxdants’ conduet, Plalntiff becamo seriously emotionally

10
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traumatized, anxious, mentajly anguished, and suffered severs smotional distress, in an amount to be
proved at trial, but not less than Five Milllor Dollars.

67,  Defendamts’ sctions in consclous digregard for Flaintitf”s well-being constitute malice,
oppression, and/or fraud, pursvant to Californie Civil Code Section 3294. Plaintiff is therefore
entitled to punitive damages in 2n amount sufficient to punish or set an@xample of Defendants.

| AUSE 10N
(For Injunctive Relicf Againat all Defendants)

68.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 22-
30, 32-42, 44-49, 51-38, und 60-67 above as though fully st forth harein.

69, The Stipulated Yudgment in the Lawsuit provides at Paragraph 2. . “That defendant,
Michae] Davis, and his age{uts, empioyces and representatives, including but not limited to, Bold
Magazine, are permanently enjoincd from fssuing, or authorizing the issuance of, any staternent
contrary 1o any of the foregoing findings,"”

70, Plaintiff iz infosmed and believes, mid 4n that basis ullcges, that tbe Stipulated
Judgment in the Lawsuit was unlawfully procured through the usc of illegal wiretapping.

7% Furthermore, Paragraph 2. a. of the Stipulated Judgment constitutes an unlawful prior
regiraint,

72 Flaintiff secks injunctive relief in the form of an order modifying the Stipulated
Judgmeit,

PRAVER

Wherefore, Plaintiff prays for an order or judgment against Defendants as follows:

1. n the First ond Third through Fifth Cavscs of Astion, geusial and spovinl danages
astording 1o proof, but not less than Five Million Dollars:

2. Ono the Sceond Cause of Action, the greater of $100 wer day for each day of violation
or $10,000, aecording to proof:

3. Treble damages, acoording to applicable atatutes;

4, Tanitlve darnages ws ta the Fimst, Sescond, Fourth, and Fifth Causes of Action:

5. Satutory damages, according to applicable statutes;

11
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6. Equitable and declaratory relief as to the Second Cause of Action:

7. Injunctive relief as the Sixth Cauge of Action;

] Award of Plalotitf’s attorneys’ fees and other costs of suit to the extent permitted by
law, including without limitation pursuant to 18 U.S.C, § 2320(1)(3), 18 U.8.C. § 2707(1)(3), Cal.
Civil Code Section 1798.53, and Cal. Code iv. Prac. § 1021.5; and

o, Az 1o all causes of action, such other and forther relief ag the Coltt may deem just and

proper.

DATED: Deceimnber 18, 2009 LAW OFFICES OF DAVID W. AFFELD, A.P.C.
And IVES, KIRWAN & DIBBLE, AP.C,

By:‘;'.:—"-ib)W

DAVID W, AFFEL !
Attornays for Plaing]

12
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L DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure §592, Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury for all

Issues so triable.

| MATED: December 1%, 2000 LAW OFFICES OF DAVID W. AFFELD, A.P.C.
And IVES, KIRWAN & DIBBLE, AP.C,

Ty

8 By: {4 M/rﬁ" 4
DAVID Wi AFFELD

Attorneys for Malt
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